






































From: Katie Howard
To: Colin Murphy; Bob Swain
Cc: Kristy Goldwire; Ashley Morgan-Daniel; Nicole Odom
Subject: Re: Follow up from Governance Committee
Date: Friday, September 24, 2021 10:59:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Please see below. My notes are in red. 

From: Colin Murphy
Sent: Friday, September 24, 2021 10:38 AM
To: Bob Swain; Katie Howard
Cc: Kristy Goldwire; Ashley Morgan-Daniel; Nicole Odom
Subject: Follow up from Governance Committee

Greetings:

As a follow up from yesterday,  I need the following info (COB today, if at all possible ) for Monday’s
CTAC meeting because I will be preparing the materials first thing on Monday:

1. Bob – general statement for the employee handbook concerning Florida Public
Records law (I will create a new section in the first chapter for this).

2. Katie – FMLA policy statement (and a recommendation as to exactly where to place
it). Sent and replace 4.6

3. Katie – Please review the proposed new language 6.60,D “Acting in Good Faith” and
give an opinion as to whether the phrase in parenthesis (The act of making allegations
that prove to be unsubstantiated because they are made maliciously, recklessly, or
with knowledge of their falsity, will be reviewed as a serious disciplinary offense) is
consistent or inconsistent with the concept of “Acting in Good Faith”.

It was fine as it was written... however if you want an extra level of clarification, you can add the "because
they are."

Thanks and my apologies for the short notice.

Colin Murphy
Executive Director
Children’s Trust of Alachua County

Physical Address:  802 NW 5th Ave; Suite 100, Gainesville, FL  32601
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5669, Gainesville,  FL  32627
Main Phone:  352-374-1830
Fax: 352-374-1831
Direct Line:  352-374-1821



From: Bob Swain
To: Colin Murphy; Katie Howard
Cc: Kristy Goldwire; Ashley Morgan-Daniel; Nicole Odom
Subject: RE: Follow up from Governance Committee
Date: Friday, September 24, 2021 11:00:27 AM
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The Children’s Trust is governed by the Florida Public Records law. This covers all documents, email and other
media which may be subject to public view and inspection. This covers all documents and material created
for the Children’s Trust or in the scope of its role as a government agency regardless of whether the
documents are stored on the Trusts’ computer system. These records are subject to the retention records set
by the State of Florida. It is a breach of the employee’s public duty to use any information gathered in their
employment with the Trust for their personal gain. Any questions on the Public Records law should be
addressed to the Records Custodian of the Trust or the Legal Counsel for the Trust.

Bob Swain 
Deputy County Attorney
Office of the County Attorney
12 SE 1st ST • Gainesville • FL • 32601
352.374.5218 (office) • 352.374.5216(fax)



Will replace Section 4.60 Medical Leave

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Policy

complies with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 
and will grant up to 12 weeks of leave during a 12-month period to eligible employees (or up to 
26 weeks of military caregiver leave).

The purpose of this policy is to provide employees with a general description of their FMLA
rights. In the event of any conflict between this policy and the applicable law, employees will be
afforded all rights required by law. If you have any questions, concerns or disputes with this 
policy, please contact Human Resources

Eligibility 

To be eligible for leave under this policy, employees must meet all of the following 
requirements:

Have worked at least twelve (12) months for .
Have worked at least 1,250 hours for over the twelve
(12) months preceding the date the leave would commence.

The 12 months of employment do not have to be consecutive. All periods of absence from work 
due to or necessitated by service in the uniformed services are counted as hours worked in 
determining eligibility.

Reasons for Leave

To qualify as FMLA leave under this policy, the leave must be for one of the following reasons: 

The birth of a child or placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care.
To care for a spouse, child or parent who has a serious health condition.
For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the essential
functions of his or her job.
For any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that a spouse, child or parent is a
military member on covered active duty or on call to covered active duty status.
To care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness.

Amount of Leave

An eligible employee can take up to 12 weeks of FMLA leave during any 12-month period. The 
company will measure the 12-month period as a rolling 12-month period measured backward 
from the date an employee uses any leave under this policy. Each time an employee takes 
leave, the company will compute the amount of leave the employee has taken under this policy 
in the last 12 months and subtract it from the 12 weeks of available leave, and the balance 
remaining is the amount the employee is entitled to take at that time.



An eligible employee can take up to 26 weeks for the FMLA military caregiver leave during a 
single 12-month period. For this military caregiver leave, the company will measure the 12-
month period as a rolling 12-month period measured forward. FMLA leave already taken for 
other FMLA circumstances will be deducted from the total of 26 weeks available. 

Eligible spouses who both work for the company may only take a combined total of 12 weeks of 
leave for the birth of a child, adoption or placement of a child in foster care, or to care for a 
parent (but not a parent "in-law") with a serious health condition. Both may only take a 
combined total of 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered injured or ill service member (if each 
spouse is a parent, spouse, child or next of kin of the service member).

Intermittent Leave or a Reduced Work Schedule 

Employees may take FMLA leave in one consecutive block of time, may use the leave 
intermittently (take a day periodically when needed over the year) or, under certain 
circumstances, may use the leave to reduce the workweek or workday, resulting in a reduced 
hour schedule. In all cases, the leave may not exceed a total of 12 workweeks (or 26 
workweeks to care for an injured or ill service member) in a 12-month period.

The company may temporarily transfer an employee to an available alternative position with 
equivalent pay and benefits if the alternative position would better accommodate the intermittent 
or reduced schedule, in instances when leave for the employee or employee's family member is 
foreseeable and for planned medical treatment, including recovery from a serious health 
condition or to care for a child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care. 

For the birth, adoption or foster care of a child, the company and the employee must mutually 
agree to the schedule before the employee may take the leave intermittently or work a reduced-
hour schedule. Leave for birth, adoption or foster care of a child must be taken within one year 
of the birth or placement of the child. 

When leave is needed for planned medical treatment, the employee must make a reasonable 
effort to schedule treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the company's operations.

Employee Notice Requirement

All employees requesting FMLA leave must provide verbal or written notice of the need for leave 
to the department manager or HR manager. 

When the need for the leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide the company with at 
least 30 days' notice. When an employee becomes aware of a need for FMLA leave fewer than 
30 days in advance, the employee must provide notice of the need for the leave either the same 
day the need for leave is discovered or the next business day. When the need for FMLA leave is 

usual and customary notice and 
procedural requirements for requesting leave, absent unusual circumstances. 

Within five business days after the employee has provided this notice, the HR manager will 
complete and provide the employee with a Notice of Eligibility and Rights and request a medical 
certification or other supporting documentation as necessary. 



Designation of FMLA Leave

Within five business days after the employee has submitted the required certification or other 
documentation, the HR manager will complete and provide the employee with a written 

FMLA Designation Notice. 

Employee Status and Benefits During Leave 

will continue an employee's health benefits during the leave 
period at the same level and under the same conditions as if the employee was continuously at
work. 

While on paid leave, the employer will continue to make payroll deductions to collect the 
employee's share of insurance premiums. While on unpaid leave, the employee must continue 
to make this payment, either in person or by mail. The payment must be received Finance by 
the first day of each month. If the payment is more than 30 days late, the employee's health 
care coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. 
The company will provide 15 days' notification prior to the employee's loss of coverage.

If the employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued serious health 
condition of the employee or the employee's family member or a circumstance beyond the 
employee's control, the company will require the employee to reimburse the company the 
amount it paid for the employee's health insurance premium during the leave period. 

If the employee contributes to a life insurance or disability plan, the company will continue 
making payroll deductions while the employee is on paid leave. While the employee is on 
unpaid leave, the employee may request continuation of such benefits and pay his or her 
portion of the premiums, or the company may elect to maintain such benefits during the leave 
and pay the employee's share of the premium payments. If the employee does not continue 
these payments, the company will discontinue coverage during the leave. If the company 
maintains coverage, the company may recover the costs incurred for paying the employee's 
share of any premiums, whether or not the employee returns to work. 

Employee Status After Leave 

An employee who takes leave under this policy may be asked to provide a fitness for duty 
clearance from a health care provider. This requirement will be included in the 
response to the FMLA request. Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to 
return to the same position or a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits and other 
employment terms. The position will be the same or one that is virtually identical in terms of pay, 
benefits and working conditions. The company may choose to exempt certain key employees 
from this requirement and not return them to the same or similar position when doing so will 
cause substantial and grievous economic injury to business operations. Key employees will be 
given written notice at the time FMLA leave is requested of his or her status as a key employee. 

Use of Paid and Unpaid Leave 

An employee who is taking FMLA leave because of the employee's own serious health 
condition or the serious health condition of a family member must use all paid vacation, 



personal or sick leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave. Sick leave will run concurrently 
with FMLA leave if the reason for the FMLA leave is covered by the established sick leave 
policy. 

Disability leave for the birth of a child and for an employee's serious health condition, including 
workers' compensation leave (to the extent that it qualifies), will be designated as FMLA leave 
and will run concurrently with FMLA. For example, when an employee takes six weeks of 
Childrens Trust of Alachua County pregnancy disability leave, the six weeks will be designated 
as FMLA leave and counted toward the employee's 12-week entitlement. The employee will 
then be required to substitute accrued (or earned) paid leave as appropriate before being 
eligible for unpaid leave for what remains of the 12-week entitlement. An employee who is 
taking leave for the adoption or foster care of a child must use all paid vacation, personal or 
family leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave. 

An employee who is using military FMLA leave for a qualifying exigency must use all paid 
vacation and personal leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave. An employee using FMLA 
military caregiver leave must also use all paid vacation, personal leave or sick leave (as long as 

eing eligible 
for unpaid leave. 

Intent to Return to Work from FMLA Leave

On a basis that does not discriminate against employees on FMLA leave, the company may 
to 

return to work.

Definitions

Serious health condition means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition 
that involves inpatient care or continuing treatment by a health care provider. This can include 
conditions with short-term, chronic, long-term or permanent periods of incapacity.

Spouse means a husband or wife as defined or recognized in the state where the individual 
was married and includes individuals in a common law or same-sex marriage. Spouse also 
includes a husband or wife in a marriage that was validly entered into outside of the United 
States, if the marriage could have been entered into in at least one state.

Child means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a 
person standing in loco parentis, who is either under age 18, or age 18 or older and
of self- to
commence.

Parent means a biological, adoptive, step or foster father or mother, or any other individual who 
stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. This term does not 

Qualifying exigency includes short-notice deployment, military events and activities, child care 
and school activities, financial and legal arrangements, counseling, rest and recuperation, post-



deployment activities, and additional activities that arise out of active duty, provided that the 
employer and employee agree, including agreement on timing and duration of the leave.

Covered active duty for members of a regular component of the Armed Forces, means duty 
during deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country. For a member of 
the Reserve components of the Armed Forces, means duty during the deployment of the 
member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country under a federal call or order to active duty 
in support of a contingency operation, in accordance with 29 CR 825.102.

The next of kin of a covered service member is the nearest blood relative, other than the 
covered service member's spouse, parent or child in the following order of priority: blood 
relatives who have been granted legal custody of the service member by court decree or 
statutory provisions, brothers and sisters, grandparents, aunts and uncles, and first cousins, 
unless the covered service member has specifically designated in writing another blood relative 
as his or her nearest blood relative for purposes of military caregiver leave under the FMLA. 

Covered service member is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the
National Guard or Reserves, who is receiving medical treatment, recuperation or therapy, or is
in outpatient status or on the temporary disability retired list for a serious injury or illness.

Serious injury or illness is one that is incurred by a service member in the line of duty on 
active duty that may cause the service member to be medically unfit to perform the duties of his
or her office, grade, rank or rating. A serious injury or illness also includes injuries or illnesses 
that existed before the service
line of duty on active duty.
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Attest 

Tina Certain (Sep 30, 202122:17 EDT) 

Tina Certain, Treasurer, 

Children's Trust of Alachua County 
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